Council (Council Tax) SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL SUMMONS

DATE: Thursday 26 February 2015

8. CORPORATE PLAN 2015-2019 (Pages 3 - 8)

Recommendation I : Overview and Scrutiny Committee (24 February 2015)

17a. CABINET - APPOINTMENT OF VOLUNTARY SECTOR REPRESENTATIVE - CONSTITUTIONAL CHANGES: (Pages 9 - 16)

Report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services





COUNCIL 26 FEBRUARY 2015

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION (20 JANUARY 2015)

RECOMMENDATION I

CORPORATE PLAN



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES

24 FEBRUARY 2015

Chair: * Councillor Jerry Miles

Councillors: * Ghazanfar Ali * Kam Chana

Richard Almond * Chris Mote

Jeff Anderson * Paul Osborn

Voting (Voluntary Aided) (Parent Governors)

Co-opted:

Mrs J Rammelt † Mrs A Khan

† Reverend P Reece

Non-voting Harrow Youth Parliament Representative **Co-opted:**

In attendance:Simon BrownMinute 73(Councillors)Pamela FitzpatrickMinute 74Graham HensonMinute 71

Graham Henson Minute 71
Barry Kendler Minute 75

Denotes Member present

† Denotes apologies received

66. Attendance by Reserve Members

RESOLVED: To note that there were no Reserve Members in attendance.

RECOMMENDED ITEMS

71. Corporate Plan 2015/16

The Committee received a report which contained the proposed Corporate Plan for 2014-19 which set out the Council's strategic direction, vision and priorities for the next four years. It incorporated the Council's Corporate Equality Objectives

The Chair advised the Committee that the report had already been considered by the Cabinet and that the Corporate Plan would be finalised at the Council meeting on 26 February 2015. The Committee were being asked to provide comments that would be forwarded to the Council meeting.

The Portfolio Holder for Performance, Corporate Resources & Policy Development introduced the report and made the following points:

- Moving to a 4 year Corporate Plan was intended to provide stability;
- the Corporate Plan set out the vision for the Council's direction, alongside the Council's ambitions;
- the summary contained the 'golden thread' of 'Making A Difference' and set out both what to do and how to do it;
- the intention to 'mainstream' the Equalities agenda had been achieved with the inclusion of the Corporate Equalities Objectives in the Corporate Plan.

A Member noted the commitment to 'engage with residents differently' and asked how the Council would move towards a new model of local government in which residents were more involved. The Portfolio Holder responded that the process had begun with the 'Take Part' consultation, and would continue as the Council considered how to improve engagement and response rates. The Divisional Director, Strategic Commissioning, added that a research project would seek to identify the best means of improving engagement and involvement.

A Member noted that £31m had been secured for regeneration in the heart of Harrow, and that a pilot scheme was in place to tackle rogue landlords. The Portfolio Holder agreed that these projects were good news. He added that the licensing scheme would be monitored for its effectiveness.

A Member queried how the success of planned outcomes would be measured as there were no targets contained in the Corporate Plan. The Portfolio Holder and Divisional Director explained that these would be contained in the corporate scorecard which would be reported to Cabinet quarterly.

A Member commented that the proposal to change the petition scheme, and reduce the threshold for the number of signatures required to trigger a debate

- 46 -

went against the stated objective to improve engagement. In his view the petition scheme as it stood had been very successful in garnering public opinion and engagement in issues that mattered to residents and he could not understand why it was necessary to change a successful mechanism for engagement. The Portfolio Holder replied that the terms could be changed if necessary. The Member added that plans to reduce the amount of scrutiny taking place would lose yet another opportunity for engagement.

A Member queried the stated ambition of the Council, in that the Corporate Plan aimed to be 'one of the safest boroughs', when in fact statistics showed that Harrow was considered to be the safest London borough. The Divisional Director explained the statistical analysis and stressed that the ambition to remain at the top had not changed. However, he believed that the perception and fear of crime remained high despite the facts, and work would continue to address this

A Member asked how the Council would verify its commitment that Labour Members would work in the community. The Portfolio Holder pointed out that the commitment was to do a minimum of 50 hours over the year, and that many councillors did more.

A Member asked what measures were in place to support the commercial sector in Harrow. The Portfolio Holder responded that work was ongoing to promote apprenticeships, local procurement, and requirements for contractors to recruit locally. This would all support increased employment, which would in turn improve commercial activity. Another Member commented that it was equally important to retain what already existed in the small town centres.

A Member asked whether parks were accounted for in the Plan. The Portfolio Holder reiterated that with savings of £83m to be made, hard decisions had to be made. The Council would invest in services for the vulnerable, such as the Youth Offending Team, Adult Services, and the Under 5s but could not support every service. It was possible that regeneration and increased income could produce some mitigation, but he was also of the view that attitudes to litter had to change, with the public taking more responsibility for their actions.

In response to queries about named commitments not being explained elsewhere in the Plan, the Portfolio Holder stated that the current model of local government was not sustainable. It would be necessary to empower local communities and devolve some decision making. He agreed that in such circumstances it may well prove possible that a community could take on the responsibility to maintain a local park.

Resolved to RECOMMEND: (to Council)

That the Committee's comments be considered.

COUNCIL 26 FEBRUARY 2015

CABINET – APPOINTMENT OF VOLUNTARY SECTOR REPRESENTATIVE – CONSTITUTIONAL CHANGES

REPORT FOR: COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 26 February 2015

Subject: Cabinet - Appointment of Voluntary Sector

Representative – Constitutional Changes

Responsible Officer: Hugh Peart, Director of Legal and

Governance Services

Exempt: No

Wards affected: N/A

Enclosures: Appendix – Changes to the Constitution

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations

The Administration has expressed a commitment to appoint a representative of the Voluntary Sector as a Non Executive member of Cabinet. To facilitate this, an amendment to the Constitution will be required. In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 6.2, this report is urgent so that the changes to the Constitution can be made and a Non Executive Member appointed by Cabinet as soon as possible.

Recommendations:

That the Council's Constitution be amended as set out in the report to enable a member of the voluntary sector to be appointed as a Non Executive member of Cabinet.



Section 2 - Report

The Council's Constitution requires amendment at the following paragraphs in order to enable the appointment of a voluntary sector representative to Cabinet. The revised wording is set out below:

Article 7 paragraph 7.14

The Leader may appoint a maximum of 4 non-executive members of cabinet from the voluntary sector and from the opposition parties as nominated by their group leaders. Non-executive members of cabinet may speak but not vote on items before cabinet in private and public meetings and have commensurate access to documents as full Cabinet members except for draft cabinet reports.

Executive procedure rule 5.3

The Leader may appoint a maximum of 4 non-executive members of cabinet from the voluntary sector and from the opposition parties as nominated by their group leaders. Non-executive members of cabinet may speak but not vote on items before cabinet in private and public meetings and have commensurate access to documents as full Cabinet members except for draft cabinet reports.

Code of Conduct for Councillors

Paragraph 1(4) "Co-opted member" means any person who is not a member of the Council but who:

- (i) Is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the council, or
- (ii) Is a member of and represents the council on any joint committee or joint sub-committee of the Council, or
- (iii) Is a non-executive member of Cabinet

The Appendix attached the details of the changes proposed.

Financial Implications

In accordance with the Council's Members' Allowances Scheme, Non-Executive members of Cabinet are entitled to receive a Special Responsibility Allowance. The SRA (£6,780 per annum) related to this role can be contained within existing budgets.

Risk Management Implications

Risk included on Directorate risk register? No

Separate risk register in place? No

Equalities implications

Was an Equality Impact Assessment carried out? No

Council Priorities

The Council's vision:

Working Together to Make a Difference for Harrow

- Making a difference for the vulnerable
- Making a difference for communities

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance

| Date: 26 February 2015 Ward Councillors notified: | | N/A |
|--|-----------|---|
| Name: Linda Cohen | V | on behalf of the Monitoring Officer |
| Date: 26 February 2015 | | |
| Name: Simon George | $\sqrt{}$ | on behalf of the Chief Financial Officer |

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background Papers

Contact: Alison Atherton, Senior Professional Democratic Services tel: 020 8424 1266 email: alison.atherton@harrow.gov.uk

Background Papers: Council's Constitution

If appropriate, does the report include the following considerations?

| 1. | Consultation | NO |
|----|--------------|-----|
| 2. | Priorities | YES |

Article 7

7.1.14 Non-Executive Cabinet Members

The Leader may appoint a maximum of 4 non executive members of Cabinet from the voluntary sector and a minimum of 1 Non-Executive member from the opposition parties as nominated by their group leaders as Non Executive members of Cabinet. They may speak but not vote on items before the Cabinet in private and public meetings and have commensurate access to documents as full Cabinet members except for draft Cabinet reports.

Executive Procedural Rules para 5.3

The Leader may appoint a maximum of 4 and a minimum of 1 Non-Executive Members of Cabinet from the voluntary sector and from the opposition parties as nominated by their group leaders as Non-Executive Members of Cabinet. They may speak but not vote on items before the Cabinet in private and public meetings, and have commensurate access to documents as full Cabinet Members except for draft Cabinet reports.

Code of Conduct for Councillors

Paragraph 1(4)(c) "Co-opted member" means any person who is not a member of the Council but who:

- (i) Is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the council, or
- (ii) Is a member of and represents the council on any joint committee or joint subcommittee of the Council. or
- (iii) Is a non-executive member of Cabinet